
54260 Federal Register / Vol. 80, No. 174 / Wednesday, September 9, 2015 / Notices 

1 To view the notice, PRA, RMD, and comments 
we received, go to http://www.regulations.gov/
#!docketDetail;D=APHIS-2015-0001. 

introduced into or disseminated within 
the United States. 

Section 319.56–4 contains a 
performance-based process for 
approving the importation of certain 
fruits and vegetables that, based on the 
findings of a pest risk analysis, can be 
safely imported subject to one or more 
of the designated phytosanitary 
measures listed in paragraph (b) of that 
section. 

In accordance with that process, we 
published a notice1 in the Federal 
Register on March 12, 2015 (80 FR 
12976–12977, Docket No. APHIS–2015– 
0001), in which we announced the 
availability, for review and comment, of 
a pest risk assessment (PRA) that 
identifies pests of quarantine 
significance that could follow the 
pathway of importation of cranberries 
from Chile into the continental United 
States. Based on the PRA, a risk 
management document (RMD) was 
prepared to identify phytosanitary 
measures that could be applied to the 
cranberries to mitigate the pest risk. 

We solicited comments on the PRA 
and RMD for 60 days, ending on May 
11, 2015. We received six comments by 
that date, from an organization of State 
plant regulatory agencies, importers, the 
Chilean Government, and private 
citizens. All comments we received 
supported the importation of cranberries 
from Chile into the continental United 
States. 

Therefore, in accordance with 
§ 319.56–4(c)(2)(ii), we are announcing 
our decision to authorize the 
importation of cranberries from Chile 
into the continental United States 
subject to the following phytosanitary 
measures: 

• The cranberries must be imported 
as commercial consignments only; 

• Each consignment of cranberries 
must be accompanied by a 
phytosanitary certificate issued by the 
national plant protection organization of 
Chile; and 

• Each consignment of cranberries is 
subject to inspection upon arrival at the 
port of entry to the United States. 

These conditions will be listed in the 
Fruits and Vegetables Import 
Requirements database (available at 
http://www.aphis.usda.gov/favir). In 
addition to these specific measures, 
cranberries from Chile will be subject to 
the general requirements listed in 
§ 319.56–3 that are applicable to the 
importation of all fruits and vegetables. 

Authority: 7 U.S.C. 450, 7701–7772, and 
7781–7786; 21 U.S.C. 136 and 136a; 7 CFR 
2.22, 2.80, and 371.3. 

Done in Washington, DC, this 2nd day of 
September 2015. 
Michael C. Gregoire, 
Acting Administrator, Animal and Plant 
Health Inspection Service. 
[FR Doc. 2015–22719 Filed 9–8–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 3410–34–P 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 

Forest Service 

Forest Resource Coordinating 
Committee 

AGENCY: Forest Service, USDA. 
ACTION: Notice of meeting. 

SUMMARY: The Forest Resource 
Coordinating Committee (Committee) 
will meet via teleconference. The 
Committee is established consistent 
with the Federal Advisory Committee 
Act of 1972 (FACA) (5 U.S.C. App. II), 
and the Food, Conservation, and Energy 
Act of 2008 (the Act) (Pub. L. 110–246). 
Additional information concerning the 
Committee, including the meeting 
agenda, supporting documents and 
minutes, can be found by visiting the 
Committee’s Web site at http://
www.fs.fed.us/spf/coop/frcc/. 
DATES: The teleconference will be held 
on October 14, 2015 from 12:00 p.m. to 
1:30 p.m., Eastern Daylight Time (EDT). 
The meeting is subject to cancellation. 
For status of the meeting prior to 
attendance, please contact the person 
listed under FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
CONTACT. 
ADDRESSES: The meeting will be held 
via teleconference. For anyone who 
would like to attend the teleconference, 
please visit the Web site listed in the 
SUMMARY section or contact Andrea 
Bedell-Loucks at abloucks@fs.fed.us for 
further details. Written comments may 
be submitted as described under 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION. All 
comments, including names and 
addresses when provided, are placed in 
the record and are available for public 
inspection and copying. The public may 
inspect comments placed on the 
Committee’s Web site listed above. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Andrea Bedell-Loucks, Designated 
Federal Officer, Cooperative Forestry 
staff, 202–205–1190. Individuals who 
use telecommunication devices for the 
deaf (TDD) may call the Federal 
Information Relay Service (FIRS) at 1– 
800–877–8339 between 8:00 a.m. and 
8:00 p.m., Eastern Standard Time, 
Monday through Friday. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The 
purpose of the meeting is to: 

1. Review and discuss outreach efforts 
to USDA leadership, partners, and other 
federal agencies, and 

2. Develop draft agenda for December 
meeting. 

The teleconference is open to the 
public. However, the public is strongly 
encouraged to RSVP prior to the 
teleconference to ensure all related 
documents are shared with public 
meeting participants. The agenda will 
include time for people to make oral 
statements of three minutes or less. 
Individuals wishing to make an oral 
statement should submit a request in 
writing 10 days before the planned 
meeting to be scheduled on the agenda. 
Anyone who would like to bring related 
matters to the attention of the 
Committee may file written statements 
with the Committee staff before or after 
the meeting. Written comments and 
time requests for oral comments must be 
sent to Laurie Schoonhoven, 1400 
Independence Avenue SW., Mailstop 
1123, Washington, DC 20250 or by 
email to lschoonhoven@fs.fed.us. A 
summary of the meeting will be posted 
on the Web site listed above within 21 
days after the meeting. 

Meeting Accommodations: If you are 
a person requiring reasonable 
accommodation, please make requests 
in advance for sign language 
interpreting, assistive listening devices 
or other reasonable accommodation for 
access to the facility or proceedings by 
contacting the person listed in the 
section titled For Further Information 
Contact. All reasonable accommodation 
requests are managed on a case by case 
basis. 

Dated: September 1, 2015. 
Victoria Christiansen, 
Associate Deputy Chief, State and Private 
Forestry. 
[FR Doc. 2015–22611 Filed 9–8–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 3411–15–P 

COMMISSION ON CIVIL RIGHTS 

Notice of Public Meeting of the 
Wisconsin Advisory Committee To 
Introduce Recently Appointed 
Committee Members and Discuss Civil 
Rights Concerns in the State 

AGENCY: U.S. Commission on Civil 
Rights. 
ACTION: Announcement of meeting. 

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given, 
pursuant to the provisions of the rules 
and regulations of the U.S. Commission 
on Civil Rights (Commission) and the 
Federal Advisory Committee Act that 
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1 See Petitions for the Imposition of Antidumping 
Duties on Imports of Certain Hot-Rolled Steel Flat 
Products from Australia, Brazil, Japan, Korea, the 
Netherlands, Turkey, and the United Kingdom, 
dated August 11, 2015 (the Petitions). 

2 See the Petitions for the Imposition of 
Countervailing Duties on Imports of Certain Hot- 
Rolled Steel Flat Products from Brazil, Korea, and 
Turkey, dated August 11, 2015. 

3 See Volume I of the Petitions, at 2, and Exhibit 
I–1. 

4 See Letter from the Department to Petitioners 
entitled ‘‘Re: Petitions for the Imposition of 
Antidumping Duties and Countervailing Duties on 
Imports of Certain Hot-Rolled Steel Flat Products 
from Brazil, Korea, and Turkey and Antidumping 
Duties on Imports of Certain Hot-Rolled Steel Flat 
Products from Australia, Brazil, Japan, Korea, the 
Netherlands, Turkey, and the United Kingdom: 
Supplemental Questions’’ dated August 14, 2015; 
(General Issues Supplemental Questionnaire), and 
Letters from the Department to Petitioners entitled 
‘‘Re: Petition for the Imposition of Antidumping 
Duties on Imports of Certain Hot-Rolled Steel Flat 
Products from {country}: Supplemental Questions’’ 
on each of the country-specific records, dated 
August 14, 2015. 

5 See Responses to the Department’s August 14, 
2015 Questionnaires Regarding Volumes II, III, IV, 
V, VI, VII, and VIII, of the Petitions for the 
Antidumping and Countervailing Duties, each 
dated August 18, 2015; see also Response to the 
Department’s August 14, 2015 Questionnaire 
Regarding Volume I of the Petitions for 
Antidumping and Countervailing Duties, dated 
August 20, 2015 (General Issues Supplement); see 
also Scope Supplement to the Petitions, dated 
August 26, 2015 (Scope Supplement). 

the Illinois Advisory Committee 
(Committee) will hold a meeting on 
Tuesday, October 06, 2015, at 12:00 
p.m. CDT for the purpose of introducing 
Committee members appointed August 
14, 2015, and beginning a discussion 
regarding civil rights concerns in the 
State for the Committee’s consideration. 

Members of the public can listen to 
the discussion. This meeting is available 
to the public through the following toll- 
free call-in number: 888–395–3227, 
conference ID: 2301980. Any interested 
member of the public may call this 
number and listen to the meeting. The 
conference call operator will ask callers 
to identify themselves, the organization 
they are affiliated with (if any), and an 
email address prior to placing callers 
into the conference room. Callers can 
expect to incur charges for calls they 
initiate over wireless lines, and the 
Commission will not refund any 
incurred charges. Callers will incur no 
charge for calls they initiate over land- 
line connections to the toll-free 
telephone number. Persons with hearing 
impairments may also follow the 
proceedings by first calling the Federal 
Relay Service at 1–800–977–8339 and 
providing the Service with the 
conference call number and conference 
ID number. 

Member of the public are also invited 
and welcomed to make statements 
during the scheduled open comment 
period. In addition, members of the 
public may submit written comments; 
the comments must be received in the 
regional office by November 05, 2015. 
Written comments may be mailed to the 
Regional Programs Unit, U.S. 
Commission on Civil Rights, 55 W. 
Monroe St., Suite 410, Chicago, IL 
60615. They may also be faxed to the 
Commission at (312) 353–8324, or 
emailed to Administrative Assistant, 
Carolyn Allen at callen@usccr.gov. 
Persons who desire additional 
information may contact the Regional 
Programs Unit at (312) 353–8311. 

Records and documents discussed 
during the meeting will be available for 
public viewing prior to and after the 
meeting at https://database.faca.gov/
committee/meetings.aspx?cid=282 and 
clicking on the ‘‘Meeting Details’’ and 
‘‘Documents’’ links. Records generated 
from this meeting may also be inspected 
and reproduced at the Regional 
Programs Unit, as they become 
available, both before and after the 
meeting. Persons interested in the work 
of this Committee are directed to the 
Commission’s Web site, http://
www.usccr.gov, or may contact the 
Regional Programs Unit at the above 
email or street address. 

Agenda 
Welcome and Introductions 
Chair Appointment Discussion 
Committee Roles and Responsibilities 

Ethics 
Jurisdiction and Scope of Duties 
Project Process and Examples 

Project Discussion 
Current Civil Rights Issues in 

Wisconsin 
Future Plans and Actions 
Open Comment 
Adjournment 

DATES: The meeting will be held on 
Tuesday, October 06, 2015, at 12:00 
p.m. CDT. 

Public Call Information 
Dial: 888–395–3227 
Conference ID: 2301980 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Melissa Wojnaroski, DFO, at 312–353– 
8311 or mwojnaroski@usccr.gov. 

Dated: September 3, 2015. 
David Mussatt, 
Chief, Regional Programs Unit. 
[FR Doc. 2015–22651 Filed 9–8–15; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6335–01–P 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 

International Trade Administration 

[A–602–809, A–351–845, A–588–874, A–580– 
883, A–421–813, A–489–826, A–412–825] 

Certain Hot-Rolled Steel Flat Products 
from Australia, Brazil, Japan, the 
Republic of Korea, the Netherlands, 
the Republic of Turkey, and the United 
Kingdom: Initiation of Less-Than-Fair- 
Value Investigations 

AGENCY: Enforcement and Compliance, 
International Trade Administration, 
Department of Commerce. 
DATES: Effective: September 9, 2015. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
Alexis Polovina at (202) 482–3927 
(Australia); Yang Jin Chun at (202) 482– 
5760 (Brazil); Jack Zhao at (202) 482– 
1396 (Japan); Matthew Renkey or Javier 
Barrientos at (202) 482–2312 and (202) 
482–2243, respectively (the Republic of 
Korea (Korea)); Dmitry Vladimirov at 
(202) 482–0665, (the Netherlands); Jack 
Zhao at (202) 482–1396 (the Republic of 
Turkey (Turkey)); and Yang Jin Chun at 
(202) 482–5760 (the United Kingdom), 
AD/CVD Operations, Enforcement and 
Compliance, U.S. Department of 
Commerce, 14th Street and Constitution 
Avenue NW., Washington, DC 20230. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 

The Petitions 
On August 11, 2015, the Department 

of Commerce (the Department) received 

antidumping duty (AD) Petitions 
concerning imports of certain hot-rolled 
steel flat products (hot-rolled steel) from 
Australia, Brazil, Japan, Korea, the 
Netherlands, Turkey, and the United 
Kingdom, filed in proper form on behalf 
of AK Steel Corporation, ArcelorMittal 
USA LLC, Nucor Corporation, SSAB 
Enterprises, LLC, Steel Dynamics, Inc., 
and United States Steel Corporation 
(Petitioners).1 The AD Petitions were 
accompanied by three countervailing 
duty (CVD) Petitions.2 Petitioners are 
domestic producers of hot-rolled steel.3 

On August 14, 2015, the Department 
requested additional information and 
clarification of certain areas of the 
Petitions.4 Petitioners filed responses to 
these requests on August 18, 2015, 
August 20, 2015, and August 26, 2015.5 

In accordance with section 732(b) of 
the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (the 
Act), Petitioners allege that imports of 
hot-rolled steel from Australia, Brazil, 
Japan, Korea, the Netherlands, Turkey, 
and the United Kingdom, are being, or 
are likely to be, sold in the United States 
at less-than-fair value within the 
meaning of section 731 of the Act, and 
that such imports are materially 
injuring, or threatening material injury 
to, an industry in the United States. 
Also, consistent with section 732(b)(1) 
of the Act, the Petitions are 
accompanied by information reasonably 
available to Petitioners supporting their 
allegations. 
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